Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

C'l"";f-ﬂﬂ .
i1 Y Filint
i i Swyddog Cyswillt:
!ilulgxgbul rc Sharon Thomas / 01352 702324

sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Edward Michael Hughes (Cadeirydd)

Cynghorwyr: Patrick Heesom, Paul Johnson ac Arnold Woolley
Aelodau Cyfetholedig

Robert Dewey, Jonathan Duggan-Keen, Phillipa Ann Earlam a Kenneth Harry
Molyneux

28 Tachwedd 2017
Annwyl Gynghorydd
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod Pwyllgor Safonau a gynhelir yn 6.00 pm Dydd
Llun, 4ydd Rhagfyr, 2017 yn Ystafell Bwyllgor Clwyd, Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug
CH7 6NA i ystyried yr eitemau canlynol
Nodwch yr amser y bydd y cyfarfod yn dechrau

RHAGLEN

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU
Pwrpas: | dderbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO)

Pwrpas: | dderbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau
yn unol a hynny.

3 COFNODION (Tudalennau 3 - 8)

Pwrpas: | gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 2 Hydref
2017.

4  PENODIAD AELOD ANNIBYNNOL (Tudalennau 9 - 12)

Pwrpas: Penodi aelod annibynnol (cyfetholedig) i swydd wag ar y
Pwyllgor Safonau.

5 FFORWM SAFONOL GOGLEDD CYMRU (Tudalennau 13 - 14)
Pwrpas: | dderbynnodiadau'r Is-gadeirydd.




PENDERFYNIAD TRIBIWNLYS ACHOS (Tudalennau 15 - 30)

Pwrpas: I'r pwyllgor ystyried penderfyniad diweddar tribiwnlys achos
mewn cysylltiad a chyn Gynghorydd.

GODDEFEBAU
Pwrpas: Derbyn unrhyw geisiadau am oddefebau.

RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL (Tudalennau 31 - 32)

Pwrpas: Er mwyn i'r Pwyllgor ystyried testunau i'w cynnwys ar y Rhaglen
Gwaith i'r Dyfodol.

Yn gywir

SN

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd



27.

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3

PWYLLGOR SAFONAU
2 HYDREF 2017

Cofnodion cyfarfod Pwyllgor Safonau Cyngor Sir y Fflint a gynhaliwyd yng Nghyngor
Tref Cei Connah ddydd Llun, 2 Hydref 2017. Roedd hwn hefyd yn gyfarfod blynyddol
ar y cyd lle gwahoddwyd cynrychiolwyr Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned i gymryd rhan.

YN BRESENNOL: Edward Hughes (Cadeirydd)
Y Cynghorwyr:

Patrick Heesom, Paul Johnson ac Arnold Woolley
Aelodau cyfetholedig:

Robert Dewey, Phillipa Earlam a Ken Molyneux

YMDDIHEURIAD: Jonathan Duggan-Keen

CYNRYCHIOLWYR CYNGHORAU TREF A CHYMUNED: Y Cynghorwyr Brian
Doleman, Christopher Owens ac Andrew Griffiths o Gyngor Cymuned Bagillt; Y
Cynghorwyr Klaus Armstrong-Braun a Keith Rogers o Gyngor Cymuned Brychdyn a
Bretton; Mr. R. Phillip Parry o Gyngor Tref Caerwys a Chynghorau Cymuned Halcyn a
Chwitffordd; Y Cynghorydd David Knights o Gyngor Tref Caerwys; y Cynghorwyr
Gwen Hardman ac Owen Thomas, Mr. Alun Evans a Ms. Jean Ramsay o Gyngor
Cymuned Cilcain; Mr. Steven Goodrum o Gyngor Tref Cei Connah; Y Cynghorwyr
Clive Carver a Dan Preece o Gyngor Cymuned Penarlag; Y Cynghorwyr Michael
Brooke, Lynda Carter, Joe Johnson a Ted Palmer o Gyngor Tref Treffynnon; Mrs.
Samantha Roberts o Gyngor Tref Yr Wyddgrug; Y Cynghorwyr David Seddon a Debbie
Seddon o Gyngor Cymuned Mostyn; Y Cynghorwyr Huw Morgan a Valmai Hughes-
Parry a Ms. Helen Wade o Gyngor Cymuned Nannerch; Y Cynghorydd John Golledge
o Gyngor Cymuned Northop Hall; Mr. Stephen Harms o Gynghorau Cymuned Northop
Hall a Llanasa; Y Cynghorydd Alex Lewis o Gyngor Cymuned Sealand; a’r Cynghorydd
Bob Hughes o Gyngor Cymuned Chwitffordd

CYFRANWYR: Mr. Nick Bennett, Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru a

Mrs. Annie Ginwalla, Swyddog Ymchwilio a Gwelliant

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL.:

Swyddog Monitro, Dirprwy Swyddog Monitro a Swyddog Gwasanaethau
Democrataidd

CYFLWYNIAD GAN OMBWDSMAN GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS CYMRU

Roedd Mr. Nick Bennett, Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru yn
bresennol gyda Mrs. Annie Ginwalla i roi cyflwyniad ar waith tim Ombwdsman
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru wrth iddynt ystyried cwynion am wasanaethau
cyhoeddus a darparwyr gofal annibynnol yng Nghymru.

Prif feysydd y cyflwyniad oedd:

e Ystadegau ar gyfer y deng mlynedd diwethaf — cynnydd o 126% yn y
cwynion a dderbyniwyd gan Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus

Tudalen 3



Cymru, gan arwain at 4,502 o argymhellion ar gyfer gwelliannau i
wasanaethau cyhoeddus ar draws Cymru.

Mae’r ymholiadau a chwynion a dderbyniwyd yn dangos tuedd ar i fyny dros
y pum mlynedd diwethaf gyda gostyngiad a groesawir yn y nifer o gwynion
Cod Ymddygiad.

Cyd-destun i amlinellu’r materion allweddol gan gynnwys y posibilrwydd o
fwy o bwerau datganoledig ar gyfer Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned yn y
dyfodol.

Roedd cwynion Cod Ymddygiad yn bennaf yn ymwneud & hyrwyddo
cydraddoldeb a pharch a datgelu a chofrestru diddordebau.

Cwynion na gadarnhawyd a’r rhai ddaeth i ben.

Roedd y cwynion Cod Ymddygiad gan y math o Awdurdod yn dangos rhwyg
0 53/46% rhwng cynghorau tref/cymuned a cynghorau sir/ bwrdeistref sirol.
Roedd ffeithiau Sir y Fflint yn dangos fod llai na 4% o gwynion Cod
Ymddygiad wedi eu gwneud yn Sir y Fflint. Nodwyd mai dim ond Pwyligor
Safonau’r awdurdod allai benderfynu a yw'r Cod Ymddygiad wedi ei dorri
gan yr awdurdod hwnnw neu Banel Dyfarnu Cymru.

Roedd profi lles y cyhoedd yn ymwneud & chyfres o ffactorau i benderfynu
a ddylid ymchwilio i’r gwyn neu'r achos o dorri’r Cod. Cymrwyd ymagwedd
gymesur i ganolbwyntio ar beth oedd bwysicaf i bobl, gyda phob achos yn
cael ei ystyried yn 6l ei rinweddau ei hun.

Cwynion na chawsant eu cadarnhau — dim ond un o’r 22 o gwynion na
chawsant eu cadarnhau a gafodd ei gyfeirio i'r Panel Dyfarnu y llynedd.
Cwynion trallodus.

Y dyfodol

Mesur newydd Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru — pedwar
maes lle gobeithia Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru
dderbyn pwerau ychwanegol.

Casgliad

Roedd Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru yn awyddus i weld
cwynion lefel isel rhwng cynghorwyr yn cael eu trin drwy Broses Ddatrys Leol er mwyn
galluogi ei dim i ganolbwyntio ar gwynion mwy difrifol a’r rhai a gyflwynwyd gan
aelodau o'r cyhoedd. Tra roedd proses o'r fath mewn grym ar lefel sirol, roedd hyn yn
rhywbeth dewisol i Gynghorau Tref a Chymuned oedd yn cael eu hannog i ystyried
mabwysiadu'r Protocol Datrysiad Lleol a gynhyrchwyd gan Un Llais Cymru. Yn ystod
trafodaeth, dim ond pedwar cynrychiolydd a ddangosodd fod Gweithdrefn Ddatrys Leol
wedi ei mabwysiadu gan eu Cyngor Tref/Cymuned. Pwysleisiodd y Swyddog Monitro
bwysigrwydd mabwysiadu gweithdrefn o’r fath cyn unrhyw gwynion byw.

Yn dilyn y cyflwyniad, ymatebodd Mr. Bennett a Mrs. Ginwalla i nifer o
gwestiynau gan Aelodau’r Pwyllgor a chynrychiolwyr y Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned:

Ymddygiad tra-arglwyddiaethol parhaus lefel isel gan gynghorwyr a’r
effaith ar y cynghorau hynny — Roedd yna ddisgwyliad i ddilyn peth ffurf o'r
Broses Ddatrys Leol. Os methai hyn, byddai Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau
Cyhoeddus Cymru yn ymchwilio drwy ystyried yn gyntaf unrhyw dystiolaeth
ddogfennol o batrymau ymddygiad ac yna gweithredu egwyddorion prawf lles y
cyhoedd.

Tudalen 4



Ystyried prun ai i barhau gydag ymchwiliad (Cod Ymddygiad) a’r trothwy
ar gyfer cwynion lefel isel - Rhoddwyd awdurdod dirprwyedig i'r tim i ystyried
cwynion a thystiolaeth o dorri'r Cod cyn gweithredu’r prawf lles y cyhoedd
goddrychol a osodwyd gan Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru.
Gellid gofyn am fwy o wybodaeth, os oedd angen, gan yr achwynydd. Os nad
oedd egwyddorion y prawf yn cael eu cwrdd, byddai’r tim yn gwrthod y gwyn ac
yn darparu rhesymau ysgrifenedig. Roedd canllawiau ar gael ar wefan
Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru i gynorthwyo cynghorau i
barchu cwynion lefel isel a phenderfynu pryd y dylid atgyfeirio.

Aelodau yr oedd cwyn wedi ei wneud yn eu herbyn — Byddai tim
Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru yn hysbysu’r Aelod
cyhuddiedig, y Clerc a'r Swyddog Monitro ynglyn a'r gwyn.

Eglurhad ar gwynion swyddogion - mae’r Cod Ymddygiad yn cyfeirio at
aelodau etholedig ac nid swyddogion (lle mae Cod ar wahan yn bodoli). Byddai
swyddog fyddai’n methu cyflawni ei ddyletswyddau cyfreithiol yn gyfystyr a
chamweinyddu. Gallai Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru
ystyried cwynion am ‘gamgymeriadau trefniadol' fel y nodir yn y Ddeddf.

Cwynion yn codi o gwyn flaenorol am Aelod etholedig - Rhaid dangos
camgymeriad trefniadol yn hytrach na dim ond achwynydd yn anghytuno gyda'r
canlyniad mewn cwynion o gamweinyddu. Rhaid i natur y gwyn fod yn
ymwneud &’r gwasanaeth a dderbynnir, h.y. gan ddefnyddiwr y gwasanaeth, a
rhaid i'r unigolyn hwnnw fod wedi dioddef anghyfiawnder. Yn gyffredinol, ni all
Aelodau etholedig wneud cwyn am eu hawdurdod eu hunain. Pan mai’r Aelod
etholedig yw defnyddiwr y gwasanaeth, yna gellid ceisio cyngor gan
Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru.

Opsiynau i Gynghorau Tref/Cymuned i ymdrin & materion parhaus yn codi
o gwyn a wnaed i Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru — Byddai
disgwyl i'r cyngor geisio datrys hyn drwy ddatrysiad lleol (os yn bosibl) i
ddechrau cyn cynnwys Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru.
Gallai’r Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned fabwysiadu protocol (tebyg ir un
fabwysiadwyd gan Gyngor Sir y Fflint) i ymdrin & chwynion trallodus sy’n bodoli
ers amser ac yn effeithio ar amser ac adnoddau. Roedd hyn eto’n pwysleisio
pwysigrwydd mabwysiadu gweithdrefn cyn unrhyw gwynion byw.

Cynghorydd Tref/Cymuned yn gofyn am adolygiad o benderfyniad — Yn yr
achos hwn, byddai Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru yn
hysbysu’r Cyngor Tref neu Gymuned perthnasol ynglyn &’r adolygiad. Yn
gyffredinol dylid derbyn adolygiadau o fewn 20 diwrnod fel y nodir yn y canllaw.

Pan fo cynghorydd & chysylitiad personol a sy’n rhagfarnu yn mynnu
siarad ar yr eitem honno — Dylid ymdrin & hyn drwy’r Broses Ddatrys Leol os
yn bosibl ac (ar lefel sirol) dylid ei gyfeirio at y Swyddog Monitro. Dylai cwynion
nad ydynt wedi eu datrys gael eu cyfeirio at Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau
Cyhoeddus Cymru.

Tudalen 5



28.

29.

30.

Gweithdrefnau Datrys Lleol — Lluniwyd yr unig ddau y mae eu bodolaeth yn
wybyddus yng Nghymru gan Un Llais Cymru (a gylchredwyd yn flaenorol gan y
Pwyllgor Safonau) ac un arall gan Gyngor Sir Ddinbych. Cytunodd y Prif
Swyddog i gylchredeg yr olaf i Gynghorau Tref a Chymuned.

Opsiynau datrys lleol ar gael — Tra’'n cydnabod nad yw’r holl Gynghorau
Tref/Cymuned yn aelodau o Un Llais Cymru, roedd yn bwysig serch hynny i
sicrhau fod gweithdrefn mewn Ille yn arbennig os oedd Cynghorau
Tref/Cymuned i gael mwy o bwerau yn y dyfodol.

Canllaw gan y Swyddog Monitro ar Weithdrefnau Datrys Lleol i Gynghorau
Tref/Cymuned — Cytunodd y Swyddog Monitro i drefnu sesiwn hyfforddi i
Glercod.

Cyfrifoldeb ar awdurdodi gwariant ariannol — Dylai Aelodau fodloni eu
hunain ar wariant cywir a dylai'r holl gyfrifon a gyflwynir fod o fewn y gyllideb a
gytunwyd yn gynharach. Roedd canllawiau ar gael o Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
ar y lefel briodol o fanylion oedd eu hangen cyn awdurdodi.

Hunanatgyfeiriad i Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru -
Cadarnhawyd fod y cyfle hwn wedi bod ar gael ers peth amser. Cytunodd Mrs.
Ginwalla i geisio canfod pam fod cyngor cyferbyniol wedi ei roi dros y ffon i'r
Cynghorydd Carver.

Cyfrinachedd — Yn dilyn penderfyniad gan Ombwdsman Gwasanaethau
Cyhoeddus Cymru i beidio i ymchwilio i gwyn, nid yw cyfrinachedd yn
angenrheidiol mwyach oni bai fod y gwyn yn cael ei chyfeirio at Bwyligor
Safonau neu Banel Dyfarnu. Gall penderfyniadau i beidio ymchwilio ymhellach
cael eu cofnodi mewn cofnodion.

Ar ran y rhai oedd yn bresennol, diolchodd y Cadeirydd i Mr. Bennett a Mrs. Ginwalla
am eu presenoldeb a’u cyflwyniad manwl.

DATGANIADAU O GYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO)

Ni wnaed unrhyw ddatganiadau o gysylltiad.

COFNODION

Cyflwynwyd cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor a gynhaliwyd ar 4 Medi 2017.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Fod y cofnodion yn cael eu llofnodi gan y Cadeirydd fel cofnod cywir.

GODDEFEBAU

Cafodd copiau o gais goddefeb a gyflwynwyd gan y Cynghorydd Geoff Collet
ar 6l cyhoeddi'r rhaglen eu dosbarthu gan y Dirprwy Swyddog Monitro. Roedd y
Cynghorydd Collett yn dymuno siarad am bum munud fel Aelod lleol yn y Pwyligor

Tudalen 6



31.

Cynllunio sydd i ddod ar gais cynllunio 056742. Roedd wedi datgan cysylltiad personol
a sy’n rhagfarnu ar yr eitem gan fod ei gartref gyferbyn a'r datblygiad arfaethedig.
Cadarnhawyd mai o dan baragraffau perthnasol (d) a (f) y ceisiwyd yr oddefeb.

Gan nad oedd y Cynghorydd Collett yn aelod o’r Pwyllgor Cynllunio, ni fyddai
ganddo’r hawl i bleidleisio a gan ei fod wedi datgan cysylltiad personol ac sy’n
rhagfarnu, dim ond am dri munud y byddai’n cael siarad. Pe byddai’n cael ei ganiatau
byddai'r oddefeb yn caniatau dau funud ychwanegol iddo i siarad ar yr eitem a
chynrychioli ei etholwyr yn llawn.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth teimlai'r Cynghorydd Arnold Wolley fod hyn yn gais rhesymol
a chynigiodd fod yr oddefeb yn cael ei chaniatau. Cefnogwyd hyn gan y Pwyllgor.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Caniatau goddefeb i'r Cynghorydd Geoff Collett o dan baragraffau (d) ac (f) o
Reoliadau’r Pwyllgor Safonau (Caniatau Goddefebau) (Cymru) 2001 i siarad am bum
munud fel Aelod lleol yn y Pwyligor Cynllunio ar gais cynllunio 056742, neu unrhyw
gais sydd, ym marn y Swyddog Monitro, yn debyg. Mae’r Cynghorydd Collett i adael
y cyfarfod ar 6l siarad, cyn trafodaeth a phleidlais ar y cais. Mae’r oddefeb i'w rhoi am
12 mis, gan ddod i ben ar 2 Hydref 2018.

ADOLYGU GODDEFEBAU

Cyflwynodd y Dirprwy Swyddog Monitro ddiweddariad ar yr adolygiad o
oddefebau yn dilyn trafodaeth yn y cyfarfod blaenorol pan roedd y Pwyllgor yn
penderfynu pa oddefebau ddylai barhau mewn grym a pha rai ddylid eu diddymu.

Yn y cyfarfod hwnnw, cytunodd y Pwyligor i ymestyn sawl goddefeb hyd y
cyfarfod hwn er mwyn galluogi’r Dirprwy Swyddog Monitro i ysgrifennu at yr Aelodau
hynny i ofyn a oeddent yn dymuno ymestyniad pellach. O ganlyniad, roedd vy
Cynghorydd Veronica Gay wedi gofyn am ymestyn ei goddefeb mewn perthynas a
Throsglwyddo Canolfan Gymunedol, Llyfrgell, a Chanolfan leuenctid yn Ased
Cymunedol ar 1 Hydref 2018. Mewn perthynas ag aelodau o Gyngor Cymuned Argoed
a gai eu cynrychioli ar ‘MIFFY’, adroddwyd fod y Clerc wedi cadarnhau nad oedd angen
y goddefebau hyn mwyach.

Eglurodd y Swyddog Monitro y gallai Aelodau oedd wedi derbyn goddefeb yn
gynharach, ail ymgeisio ar delerau tebyg pe dymunent. Dywedodd y Cynghorydd
Patrick Heesom y dylid egluro hyn yn glir wrth yr unigolion perthnasol.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Y dylai'r oddefeb a roddwyd i'r Cynghorydd Veronica Gay gan y Pwyllgor ar 4
Gorffennaf 2016, mewn perthynas & Throsglwyddo'r Ganolfan Cymunedol, Llyfrgell a
Chanolfan leuenctid i fod yn Assed Cymunedol, barhau tan 1 Hydref 2018.

Tudalen 7



32.

33.

34.

CYFARFOD FFORWM PWYLLGOR SAFONAU GOGLEDD CYMRU

Cadarnhawyd y byddai Rob Dewey yn mynychu’r Fforwm ar 24 Tachwedd 2017
ac nad oedd y Cadeirydd ar gael ar y dyddiad hwnnw. Mewn ymateb i ymholiad gan
y Cynghorydd Patrick Heesom, eglurodd y Swyddog Monitro fod Cadeiryddion ac Is-
Gadeiryddion y Pwyllgorau Safonau fel arfer yn mynychu cyfarfodydd y Fforwm, gan
ddarparu cyfle i'r aelodau annibynnol hynny i rwydweithio. Cytunodd i gadarnhau a
oedd Aelodau’r Cyngor yn gallu mynychu fel gwylwyr.

Atgoffwyd aelodau y gallant gysylltu &r Swyddog Monitro i gyflwyno unrhyw
eitemau ar gyfer y cyfarfod erbyn 13 Tachwedd 2017.

RHAGLEN GWAITH 'R DYFODOL

Derbyniodd y Pwyllgor y Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol gyfredol i'w hystyried. Nid
oedd gan gyfarfod fis Tachwedd unrhyw eitemau busnes ar hyn o bryd a byddai’'n cael
ei ganslo oni bai fod ceisiadau am oddefebau yn cael eu derbyn.

Rhoddodd y Prif Swyddog ddiweddariad cryno ar benodiad yr aelod lleyg ar y
Pwyllgor i gael ei hysbysebu ar y cyd gyda’r Awdurdod Tan. Fel yr awgrymwyd yn
gynharach, byddai’r hysbyseb yn pwysleisio natur fanteisiol gwaith y Pwyllgor i apelio
at amrediad ehangach o ymgeiswyr. Rhagwelwyd y byddai’'r cyfweliadau’n cael eu
cynnal yn niwedd Tachwedd 2017 i alluogi’r Pwyllgor i ystyried argymhellion y cyd
banel cyfweld yn Rhagfyr cyn ystyriaeth gan y Cyngor llawn ar 12 Rhagfyr. Cytunodd
y Swyddog Monitro i hysbysu'r Pwyllgor pan fyddai'r pecyn gwybodaeth recriwtio ar
gael.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Nodi'r Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol.

AELODAU O’'R WASG A'R CYHOEDD YN BRESENNOL

Nid oedd unrhyw aelodau o’r cyhoedd na’r wasg yn bresennol.

(Dechreuodd y cyfarfod am 6pm a daeth i ben am 7.35pm)

Cadeirydd

Tudalen 8



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4

Sir y Fflint
("ﬂimgbjre

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Monday, 4t December 2017
Report Subject Appointment of Independent Member
Report Author Chief Officer Governance

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council has 1 vacancy for an independent (co-opted) member on the Standards
Committee, and North Wales Fire and Rescue Authority (NWFRA) has 2 such
vacancies. The Council therefore undertook a joint recruitment exercise with
NWFRA. The two authorities shared the cost of advertising and used each other’s
networks to promote the vacancies to give them greater profile. They also appointed
a joint recruitment panel to consider the applications and make the recommendation
on who should be appointed.

In total 8 applications were received. They were shortlisted against criteria that were
previously approved by Council. 5 candidates were invited for interview by a panel
consisting of the Chair and Councillor Arnold Woolley from Flintshire’s Standards
Committee, the Chair of and another member (Clir Susan Lloyd Wllliams) from
NWFRA and the statutorily required “lay person” (Noella Jones).

At the time of writing the report the interviews had not taken place. The identity of
the recommended candidate will be reported verbally at the meeting.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Council be recommended to appoint XXX to the Standards Committee
until the end of May 2022.

2 That Noella Jones be thanked for her participation.

Tudalen 9




REPORT DETAILS

1.00

Explaining the appointment

1.01

The Standards Committee has 1 vacancy for an independent (co-opted)
member. The North Wales Fire and Rescue Authority also needs to fill
vacancies for independent members on its standards committee.

1.02

When recruiting such members there is a statutory process to follow
including publishing criteria for appointment and advertising in 2 or more
newspapers. The composition of the recruitment panel is also prescribed
and must include a lay member who must also have been appointed
following open advertisement.

1.03

To reduce the costs of the required publicity, establishment of requisite
criteria and establishment of an appropriate appointment panel, the Council
and the Fire Authority have worked together. This enabled the recruitment
to have greater prominence. A joint panel consisting of the Chair and Arnold
Woolley from Flintshire’s Standards Committee, the Chair of and another
member (ClIr Susan Lloyd Williams) from NWFRA and the “lay person” was
Noella Jones.

1.04

There were 8 applicants in total of whom 5 were shortlisted. Interviews took
place at NWFRA Headquarters on 29" November. The panel was
impressed with the quality of applicants and agreed that it would be
beneficial to recommend XXX for appointment to both committees (and YYY
for the second vacancy at the NWFRA).

1.05

Flintshire’s Standards Committee meets roughly 6 — 8 times per year
whereas the NFWRA committee meets once. By making a joint
appointment the two authorities will be able to share the investment in
training, give the member wider experience and also cross fertilise between
the two organisations.

1.06

The term of office for an independent member must be between 4 and 6
years. The periods of office for the existing independent members were
staggered so that the committee retained continuity of experience. To
reduce advertising costs it is suggested that the term of office for this
independent member should coincide with one other independent member
thereby reducing recruitment cost. 1 member is due to retire in 2018 and
another 2 members are due to retire in 2019, each will only have served 1
terms and will be eligible for reappointment for a further 4 years. The term
is therefore recommended to be until 2022.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

The statutory process required adverts to be placed in 2 newspapers. The
cost of advertising was therefore £2,968.14. Talking to the applicants
however the social media and internet publicity produced more interest and

Tudalen 10




the most number of applicant was actually gained by promoting the role to
the Standards Committee members of other council.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Full Council will make the appointment following the recommendation

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | The recruitment process was conducted in a fair manner using published,
objective criteria.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | None.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.
Contact Officer: Gareth Owens, Chief Officer Governance
Telephone: 01352 702344
E-mail: Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | NWFRA - North Wales Fire and Rescue Authority

Independent Member — a person who is neither a councillor nor an officer
who is co-opted on to the Standards Committee thereby giving the
committee a degree of impartiality and independence

Lay person — a person recruited by open advertisement to sit on
interviewing panels for independent members

Tudalen 11



mailto:Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 5

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Monday, 4" December 2017
Report Subject North Wales Standards Forum
Report Author Vice Chair

On your behalf, | attended the North Wales Standards Committee Forum on November
241 in Wrexham.

The meeting was well attended with Powys and Ceredigion committees represented for
the first time.

New member Induction

Representatives described the training processes that they had undertaken with new
Members after the elections. Some had used the WLGA presentations as a basis but had
found them too long and had shortened them to about an hour/ninety minutes. Part of the
WLGA included a video by the Ombudsman which was not thought to be very effective.
However some had used interactive sessions which required people to problem solve for
themselves which was thought to be a good thing. [ think this would be worth considering
in the future.

The Ombudsman’s case book was mentioned as providing real life examples.

One authority tries to visit every town/community council to undertake an audit of
declarations of interest that had been made. They have a schedule and do this on a rolling
3 year programme. [ get the impression that in Flintshire some CCs rarely attend our
sessions and this might be a worthwhile way of involving them. It was widely agreed that
training was generally being given to those whole least needed it.

WLGA “Five years to make a difference”

The WLGA held a very useful regional event in Llandudno with some excellent
presentations. This was primarily aimed at new councillors but was not very well attended.
| was not aware of this but it sounded an excellent session with excellent speakers.

One feature mentioned was the concern about Members’ safety in the current climate of
concerns about bullying and/or inappropriate behaviour. For example, Members can be
invited into people’s homes on their own without any independent witness to support them.
Training could be ‘sold’ on the basis of it being members’ own best interests to avoid future
allegations. It was thought that Members routinely visit people without recognising the
danger that allegations could be made against them.

Tudalen 13



There was a discussion about how/whether members’ training records should be recorded.
Powys and Wrexham put the record on the website as part of the member’s profile. | am
not sure how our members can be satisfied (and perhaps could satisfy an ombudsman)
that they have attended all the training relevant to their role in the Council.

Procedures of dealing with claims against members

Concerns were expressed about how claims against members for inappropriate behaviour
are handled. It is not entirely clear to many how such claims should be handled (NB
compare problems in the Welsh Assembly recently). The Leader of the Council can
appoint or remove a member of the Executive/Cabinet. There is no power for him or the
Council to suspend him/her as a councillor. There is a need for a Member/officer protocol
so that it is clear how a claim will be handled. We owe a duty of care to the staff but cannot
suspend or sack a councillor as a precaution if a complaint has been lodged. Only the
ombudsman can suspend/sack a councillor. That would be a long process with a member
continuing to have access to the premises in the meantime.

Agreed a letter will be drafted (by WCBC) and circulated to Monitoring Officers to send to
the Ombudsman raising this issue.

Any Other Business

Noted the presence of Wrexham Councillors at the meeting. It was explained that it is
acceptable for members of the host authority to attend but not others.

Standards Conference will be in Aberystwyth probably mid September (?14%) .

Next meeting May — venue unknown ?Flintshire?

Tudalen 14



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6

Sir y Fflint
"'E!Era!g!z.!re

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Monday, 4t December 2017
Report Subject Case Tribunal Decision - Former Councillor Halford
Report Author Chief Officer Governance

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Councillor Alison Halford formerly represented the Ewloe ward. In April 2016 there
was a large unlawful encampment in Ewloe on the former Alyn and Deeside Council
offices. The building is owned by the Council but at that time was leased to another
company, and it was thus that company’s responsibility to evict the encampment.

Clir Halford corresponded with a number of officers regarding the encampment. In
2 emails she was insulting to a relatively junior officer. She subsequently repeated
the insult in a tweet when she was reported to the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales.

A case tribunal found that she had breached the code of conduct by failing to show
the officer respect and by bullying him. She was disqualified for 14 months even
though she retired at the elections in May 2017.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the committee considers the judgement of the case tribunal and shares
with other councillors any messages or lessons arising from the decision
that it considers appropriate.

Tudalen 15



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

Explaining the case tribunal decision

1.01

The County Council owns the former offices of Alyn and Deeside Council in
Ewloe for which Councillor Halford was the ward member until she retired in
May 2017. Until recently these were leased to a private company.

In April 2016 a large unlawful encampment took place at the premises.
Although the private company was responsible for evicting the
encampment, ClIr Halford sent a number of emails to officers about the
issue. Amongst others she emailed an officer in planning enforcement
even though the encampment was not a planning issue.

Clir Halford was unhappy with the officer’s actions and wrote an email to
his chief officer as set out below. Other officers and councillors were
copied into the email

“‘Andy, my resident has raised a genuine concern about Jones & would like
an answer. Who us [sic] protecting him?” He'’s arrogant, lazy, mentally
challenged & has been useless for years. Why do you not call him to
account. He is not worthy of his salary. Alison.”

Subsequently ClIr Halford forwarded an e-mail to the officer and copied it
to a councillor and the Officer's Head of Service at 4.32pm on 5 May,
2016. It stated

“..., ’'m sure you [sic] aware | don’t rate you at all & | have made this clear
to your senior officers. What about surprising this member of the public
who does contribute to your salary & actually get back to him. Of course,
this may be something of a record for you but you must be accountable to
someone just for once. Alison Halford.”

The officer subsequently complained to the Public Services Ombudsman
for Wales who investigated and in turn referred the matter to the
Adjudication Panel for Wales (APW). The APW convened a case tribunal
to hear the complaint and on 6 October 2017 found that ClIr Halford had
committed breached of the code of conduct by failing to show the officer
respect and by bullying him. Its decision is at Appendix 1.

The case tribunal commented that Clir Halford had made

“...personal comments which were highly offensive, extremely insulting,
malicious and unwarranted. The Case Tribunal found the use of the words
“mentally challenged” particularly shocking. The Officer was singled out
unfairly, particularly as there was no indication that the Respondent had
any previous complaints or concerns about his competence or
responsiveness to members of the public. The Respondent had clearly
been aware or should have appreciated by the 5th May, 2016 that the
Officer was not responsible for dealing with temporary traveller
encampments ... This therefore constituted bullying behaviour and
behaviour which fell well below the standard of behaviour expected of a

Tudalen 16




Member, let alone an experienced politician.”

The Case Tribunal disqualified Clir Halford for 14 months saying

“The Case Tribunal had found that these were blatant and deliberate or
reckless breaches of the Code, which did not stop at one e-mail but which
continued after the Respondent became, or should have become aware,
that the Officer did not have responsibility for dealing with the traveller
encampment in question. This was further exacerbated by a “twitter”
message posted in March 2017 which showed a complete lack of insight
or remorse as to her behaviour and as to the further impact it might have
on the Officer.

The comments about the Officer would impact not only on the rights and
interests of the employee of the Council but also upon the public interest in
good administration, recognising the fact that officers are entitled to
conduct their duties with dignity and without the risk of gratuitous attacks
upon their reputation.

In all the circumstances, the Case Tribunal considered that disqualification
was an entirely justified and proportionate sanction. The Case Tribunal
considered that it was a particularly serious example of bullying and that
the disqualification had to be sufficiently long to enable the Respondent to
properly reflect upon her actions before considering re-entering local
politics. “

In offering training on the code of conduct the monitoring officer stresses
that councillors are able to challenge officers. Councillors are specifically
advised not to use personal insults and to focus on the issues instead.
Where councillors have concerns about an officer’s performance they are
advised to use the appropriate channel, i.e. raising the matter privately
with the officer’s line manager, rather than voicing such concerns in public
meeting or on email copied to others.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | There are no resource implications for the council arising out of the decision.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | The case tribunal is required to notify this committee of its decision and its
notice is attached at Appendix 2. It has also published notice of its decision
in the local press as required and the judgement is on the APW’s website.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | None arising from this decision.

Tudalen 17




5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Appendix 1 — decision of case tribunal
Appendix 2 — notification of case tribunal’s decision

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 None.
Contact Officer: Gareth Owens, Chief Officer Governance
Telephone: 01352 702344
E-mail: Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Adjudication Panel for Wales — the umbrella body appointed to hear

allegations of breaches of the code of conduct
Case Tribunal — the panel of 3 members drawn from the APW who hear a
specific case

Tudalen 18



mailto:Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

(CT13)

PDC %APW
/

PANEL DYFARNU CYMRU
ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES

DECISION REPORT

TRIBUNAL REFERENCE NUMBER:  APW/001/2017-018/CT

REFERENCE IN RELATION TO AN ALLEGED BREACH OF THE CODE OF
CONDUCT

RESPONDENT: Former Councillor Alison Halford
RELEVANT AUTHORITY: Flintshire County Council
1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 A Case Tribunal convened by the President of the Adjudication Panel for
Wales has considered a reference in respect of the above Respondent.

1.2 The Case Tribunal determined its adjudication on the basis of the papers
only, at a meeting on 6 October 2017 at the APW Office, Government Buildings,
Spa Road East, Llandrindod Wells, Powys, LD1 6HA.

2. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
2.1. Reference from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

In a letter dated 22 June 2017, the Adjudication Panel for Wales received a referral
from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (“‘the Ombudsman”) in relation to
allegations made against former Councillor Halford (“the Respondent”). The
allegations were that the Respondent had breached Flintshire County Council’s
Code of Conduct by the sending of communication which allegedly failed to show
respect and consideration for others and, used bullying and harassing behaviour.

2.2. Method of determination.

2.2.1. The Panel gave full consideration to the question of whether to proceed to
determine the case that day or whether to adjourn the matter in order to provide a
further opportunity for the Respondent to engage in the adjudication process.

2.2.2. The Panel firstly considered the relevant Regulations. The Adjudication by
Case Tribunals and Interim Case Tribunals (Wales) Regulations 2001 as
amended, Regulation 2 states that the Respondent; “must deliver to the Registrar
[of the Adjudication Panel for Wales] a written reply acknowledging receipt of the
notice [of the reference to the Panel] and stating [amongst other matters]:-

Tudalen 19 1.



(CT13)
(a) Whether or not that person intends;

0] to attend or be represented at the hearing, or
(i) to dispute the contents of the report and, if so, on what grounds”.

2.2.3. The Panel noted that the Registrar had forwarded the written notice of the
referral to the Respondent on the 4™ July, 2017 by special delivery. The package
enclosed a copy of the Ombudsman’s report and a form entitled; “Respondent’s

Response to the Reference”.

2.2.4. A further reminder was sent to the Respondent on 21° July, 2017 making it
clear that; “if you do not collect the package, it may affect your ability to respond by
the deadline to the allegations. The panel may decide in the absence of any
response from you to make a decision without any hearing taking place.” It also
stated; “it is your opportunity to set out your defence” and “if you require more time
to respond, you can make an application to the President for more time...more
time can be granted if the President considers it to be in the interests of justice to
do so, but there is also a public interest in dealing with your case promptly.” No
response was received from the Respondent however.

2.2.5 The Panel noted that Listing Directions were sent to the parties on 8™
September, 2017, providing a further opportunity to make written submissions, the
covering letter providing the Respondent the opportunity to confirm a preference
for an oral hearing. The Respondent replied by e-mail on 17" September, stating
that she would be abroad on the 6" October, 2017.

2.2.6 The Tribunal bundle was sent to the Respondent by special delivery on the
13th September, 2017.The Registrar then sent a reminder to the Respondent on
the 18" of September, 2017 regarding the contents of the letter dated 8"
September, 2017.

2.2.7 The Panel further noted that the Respondent wrote an e-mail to the Registrar
on the 20™ September, however the Panel considered that the letter did not
address the requirements of regulation 3 of the 2001 Regulation, apart from
stating; “Of course, | accept that it is virtually impossible to find against the decision
of the PSOW?”. The Panel did not consider that this necessarily evidenced an
acceptance by the Respondent of the contents of the Ombudsman’s report
however. The Panel further determined that, although the Respondent made the
comment; “As it is the decision of the PSOW to send me to a tribunal at least |
should be afforded the opportunity to attend it. As before, | expect that the hearing
will be in N Wales as travel is no longer easy for me,” the e-mail failed to confirm
whether the Respondent would actually attend or be represented at a hearing and
failed to clarify whether or not she disputed the contents of the Ombudsman’s
report.

2.2.8. The Panel finally noted that on the 26™ September, 2017, the Registrar
provided yet a further opportunity for the Respondent to engage in the process and
to apply for an extension of time to submit the form; “Respondent’s Response to
the Reference” which was originally due to be returned no later than the 25™ July,
2017. The letter made it clear that; “If you do confirm that you wish to apply for an

Tudalen 20 2.



(CT13)

extension and provide reasons, with evidence, the Panel will consider this
application on 6™ October, 2017. However, in the absence of such application,
consideration and determination of the matter may proceed on that day.”

2.2.9. No such application or further correspondence was received from the
Respondent, nor had the Respondent made arrangements to collect either the
package containing the Ombudsman’s report or the package containing the
Tribunal bundle from the Post Office as of the 6™ October, 2017.

2.2.10. In all the circumstances, the Panel decided that the Respondent had failed
to properly and meaningfully engage with the adjudication process to date, despite
the Adjudication Panel for Wales providing several opportunities to do so over a
period of three months and concluded that there was no realistic prospect of her
doing so in the future. The Panel considered that it was in the public interest to
determine cases promptly and not to delay proceedings indefinitely. It therefore
decided that it would proceed to finally determine the matter on the papers on the
6™ October, 2017.

2.3 Town or Community Council status

2.3.1. In the Listing Directions dated 8" September, 2017, the Tribunal required the
Monitoring Officer of Flintshire County Council to establish whether or not the
Respondent is/was a Town Councillor as well as previously being a County
Councillor and if so, of which Town or Community Council.

2.3.2. The Monitoring Officer of Flintshire County Council duly confirmed in writing
that the Respondent was also a former Councillor of Hawarden Community
Council.

2.3. Code of Conduct Training

2.3.1. In the Listing Directions dated 8" September 2017, the Tribunal also
required the Monitoring Officer to confirm the date(s) on which the Respondent
attended any Code of Conduct training.

2.3.2. The Monitoring Officer of Flintshire County Council duly confirmed in writing

that the Respondent had not attended Code of Conduct training since the local
government elections in 2012.

3. FINDINGS OF FACT

3.1  The Case Tribunal found the following material facts:

3.1.1 At the relevant time, former Councillor Halford was a member of Flintshire
County Council.

3.1.2 The Respondent signed an undertaking on 14™ May 2012 to the effect that
she would observe the County Council’'s Code of Conduct.

Tudalen 21 3.



(CT13)

3.1.4. Flintshire County Council had been required to respond to a number of
complaints regarding traveller encampments on various sites in Flintshire during
the early part of 2016, which generated a huge amount of e-mail correspondence.

3.1.5. Mr M Jones (“the Officer”) was a team leader responsible for planning
enforcement at Flintshire County Council.

3.1.6. The Officer had received an e-mail from a member of the public on 26™ April,
2016 and he responded that day by lengthy telephone call to the member of the
public. The Officer was not responsible for nor leading on the matter however and
the lead officer assumed the role of corresponding with the member of the pubilic,
with other members of the pubic and with councillors.

3.1.7. The Respondent forwarded an e-mail to the Officer’'s Head of Service and
copied it to the Officer and six councillors at 4.15pm on 27 April, 2016. It stated;

“‘Andy, my resident has raised a genuine concern about Jones & would like an
answer. Who us [sic] protecting him?”

He’s arrogant, lazy, mentally challenged & has been useless for years. Why do you
not call him to account. He is not worthy of his salary. Alison.”

3.1.8 The Respondent forwarded an e-mail to the Officer and copied itto a
councillor and the Officer’'s Head of Service at 4.32pm on 5 May, 2016. It stated;

“‘Mark, I'm sure you [sic] aware | don’t rate you at all & | have made this clear to
your senior officers. What about surprising this member of the public who does
contribute to your salary & actually get back to him. Of course, this may be
something of a record for you but you must be accountable to someone just for
once. Alison Halford.”

3.1.9. The Respondent was acting in her official capacity as a councillor when
sending these e-mails.

3.1.10. The Respondent posted a “tweet” on social media on 27 March 2017 which
referred to the Ombudsman’s investigation in the following terms;-“My sin; ticking
off LAZY officer. Ugg!”

3.1.11. The impact of the e-mail dated 27" April 2016 upon the Officer was that he
felt insulted, absolutely devastated and horrified.

3.1.12. The impact of the e-mail dated 5™ May 2016 upon the Officer (and read by
the Officer before reading the e-mail dated 27™ April 2016), was to cause worry,
stress and upset to the Officer.

3.1.13. The e-mails led to the Officer seeking medical, counselling and
occupational health support. They have also served to affect the Officer’s
confidence in relation to dealing with certain councillors. He has also been off work
with stress.

Tudalen 22 4.



(CT13)

4. FINDINGS OF WHETHER MATERIAL FACTS DISCLOSE A FAILURE TO
COMPLY WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

4.1 The Ombudsman’s Report

The Ombudsman’s Report appended a number of statements, including
statements from the Officer, other officers and a councillor as well as a large
number of background e-mails. The Ombudsman concluded that there was
evidence suggestive of breaches of Paragraphs 4(b) of Flintshire County Council’s
Code of Conduct:-"you must...show respect and consideration for others”, and
Paragraph 4(c) of the Code of Conduct; “you must...not use bullying behaviour or
harass any person”.

4.2  Paragraph 4(b) of the Code

4.2.1. The Guidance issued by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales and
relevant at the time of the alleged breaches stated; “Recent case law has
confirmed that council officers should be protected from unwarranted comments
that may have an adverse effect on good administration and states that it is in the
public interest that officers are not subject to unwarranted comments that disenable
them from carrying out their duties or undermine public confidence in the
administration. That said, the officers who are in more senior positions, for example
Chief Executives or Heads of Service, will also be expected to have a greater
degree of robustness.”

4.2.2. It goes on to say:-"l expect members to afford colleagues, opponents and
officers the same courtesy and consideration they show to others in their everyday
lives.”

4.2.3. Also:-“When considering such complaints | will take into account the specific
circumstances of the case, whether in my view, the member was entitled to
guestion the officer concerned, whether there was an attempt to intimidate or
undermine the officer and the content and context of what has been said”.

4.3 Paragraph 4(c) of the Code

4.3.1. The Guidance issued by the Ombudsman and relevant at the time of the
alleged breaches stated in this regard;-“Harassment is repeated behaviour which
upsets or annoys people. Bullying can be characterised as offensive, intimidating,
malicious, insulting or humiliating behaviour. Such behaviour may happen once or
be part of a pattern of behaviour directed at a weaker person or person over whom
you have some actual or perceived influence. Bullying behaviour attempts to
undermine an individual or a group of individuals, is detrimental to their confidence
and capability, and may adversely affect their health.”

4.3.2. It also states; “When considering allegations of bulling and harassment | will
consider both the perspective of the alleged victim, and whether the member

Tudalen 23 5.



(CT13)

intended their actions to be bullying. I will also consider whether the individual was
reasonably entitled to believe they were being bullied.”

4.3.3. Finally: “You need to ensure that your behaviour does not cross the line
between being forceful and bullying...the greater the power difference between the
officer and the member the greater the likelihood that the officer will consider
behaviour to constitute bullying.”

4.4 Case Tribunal’s Decision

4.4.1 On the basis of the findings of fact, the Case Tribunal found by unanimous
decision that the Respondent had failed to comply with Flintshire County Council’s
Code of Conduct and had been acting in her official capacity at the relevant time so
that the requirements of the Code of Conduct were fully engaged.

4.4.2 In relation to Paragraph 4(b) of the Code of Conduct, the Case Tribunal
found that the Respondent breached the requirement to treat others with respect
and consideration. The comments made in the Respondent’s e-mails dated 27"
April and 5™ May 2016 as well as the “twitter” message of 27" March 2017 were
completely unwarranted and would have adversely affected the Officer’s ability to
properly carry out his role, the planning enforcement role being a challenging and
often unpopular role. The Respondent’s conduct towards the Council’s professional
officer displayed a total lack of courtesy and consideration. The Respondent had
not previously criticised or questioned the professionalism of the Officer to senior
management. The comments were wholly gratuitous and unjustified and as senior
officers and councillors were copied into the e-mails, the Case Tribunal considered
that they were calculated to intimidate or undermine the officer whose job was
already under threat due to restructuring.

4.4.3. In relation to Paragraph 4(c) of the Code of Conduct, the Case Tribunal
found that, although falling short of repeated harassment, the Respondent intended
to bully and had the effect of bullying the Officer. The comments made in the
Respondent’s e-mails dated 27" April and 5" May 2016 as well as the “twitter”
message of 27" March 2017 were personal comments which were highly
offensive, extremely insulting, malicious and unwarranted. The Case Tribunal
found the use of the words “mentally challenged” particularly shocking. The Officer
was singled out unfairly, particularly as there was no indication that the
Respondent had any previous complaints or concerns about his competence or
responsiveness to members of the public. The Respondent had clearly been aware
or should have appreciated by the 5" May, 2016 that the Officer was not
responsible for dealing with temporary traveller encampments, as the Chief
Executive forwarded an e-mail to the Respondent on 27" April, 2016 at 12.36pm
stating that another officer would provide a full update and that the other officer; “is
managing the case and will have the latest information”. This therefore constituted
bullying behaviour and behaviour which fell well below the standard of behaviour
expected of a Member, let alone an experienced politician.

Tudalen 24 6.



(CT13)

4.5  Other Paragraphs of the Code of Conduct

4.5.1. It was noted that the Ombudsman did not consider that the Respondent’s
conduct breached paragraphs 4(d) and 7(a) of the Code, however he does not
provide clarification as to how he reached that conclusion.

4.5.2. The Case Tribunal was somewhat surprised that the Ombudsman had not
investigated the question of whether there had been a breach of paragraph 4(a) of
the Code bearing in mind that the Officer is registered as disabled.

4.5.3. The Case Tribunal also noted that the Ombudsman had not investigated the
guestion of whether there had been a breach of paragraphs 6(1)(a) and 6(2) of the
Code.

4.5.4. In the circumstances, the Case Tribunal makes no findings in relation to
these paragraphs of the Code.

5. DECISION ON ACTION TO BE TAKEN
51 Matters taken into account

5.1.1. The Case Tribunal considered all the facts of the case and in particular the
serious nature of the breaches of paragraphs 4(b) and 4(c) of the Code of Conduct,
in accordance with Section 79 of the Local Government Act 2000. It also had
regard to guidance issued by the Adjudication Panel for Wales in relation to
sanctions and to the sanctions imposed in previous cases.

5.1.2. The Case Tribunal was mindful of the fact that the aims of the sanctions
guidance are directed towards upholding and improving the standard of conduct
expected of local members, endorsing the role of the Code of Conduct, and
maintaining public confidence in local democracy. The action is designed to
discourage or prevent future non-compliance by members in general as well as the
individual member.

5.1.3. In this case, the Tribunal was unanimous in concluding that imposition of a
formal sanction was appropriate and noted that suspension was not an option as
the Respondent was no longer a Councillor. The Case Tribunal considered that the
facts leading to the breaches of the Code in this instance rendered the Respondent
unfit for public office in view of the deliberate, blatant and repeated abuse of her
position to bully, intimidate and maliciously undermine the confidence of a member
of staff who did not hold a senior position, using wholly inappropriate language to
do so.

5.2 Mitigating Factors
There is no doubt that there was considerable pressure upon the Respondent from

members of the public in her electoral division relation to traveller encampments at
the relevant time and that she would have experienced frustration

Tudalen 25 7.



(CT13)

at not being able to ensure immediate resolution of the issues and it appears that
the Officer bore the brunt of her frustration.

5.3 Aggravating Factors

5.3.1. The Case Tribunal received details of a Case Tribunal which found a
previous breach by the Respondent of paragraphs 6(1)(a) and 6(2) of the Code in
2010. No sanction was imposed on that occasion. The decision report stated;-“the
Tribunal accepts the assurances given that Clir Halford fully appreciates the
seriousness of this matter and that there will be no repetition.” It was also noted
that the conclusion at that time was that this was an isolated breach of the Code of
Conduct. The Respondent neither fulfilled her commitment to the 2010 Case
Tribunal, nor heeded the lessons from that previous investigation and adjudication.

5.3.2. The breach of the Code was blatant and deliberate or extremely reckless.

5.3.3. The case bundle revealed that the Respondent failed to co-operate with the
Ombudsman’s investigating officer and challenged the Ombudsman’s investigation
and the adjudication to the end, showing no regard for the formal processes in
place in Wales to determine complaints of breach of the Code of Conduct.

5.3.4. The Respondent persisted in her bullying behaviour despite having been
made aware that the Officer was not responsible for dealing with the issue in
guestion and should not therefore have been criticised in any way for any
perceived failure to address it, let alone in the terms used by the Respondent.

6. ARTICLE 10

6.1. Article 10 of the European Convention on Human Rights (“ECHR”) was fully
considered by the Case Tribunal during its deliberations both in relation to breach
and sanction. Article 10 states as follows:-

(1) Everyone has the right to freedom of expression. The right shall include
freedom to hold opinions and to receive and impart information and ideas
without interference by public authority regardless of frontiers...

(2) The exercise of these freedoms, since it carries with it duties and
responsibilities, may be subject to such formalities, conditions, restrictions or
penalties as are prescribed by law and are necessary in a democratic
society, in the interests of...the protection of the reputation or rights of
others...”

6.2. The Case Tribunal adopted the three stage approach used by Wilkie J in the
case of Sanders v Kingston No (1) [2005] EWHC 1145 in its deliberations as
follows:-

(1) Can the Panel as a matter of fact conclude that the Respondent’s
conduct amounted to a relevant breach of the Code of Conduct?

Tudalen 26 8.



(CT13)
(2) If so, was the finding of a breach and imposition of a sanction prima
facie a breach of Article 10?

(3) If so, is the restriction involved one which is justified by reason of the
requirement of Article 10(2)?

As the Case Tribunal had determined (1) in the affirmative, it then went on to
consider (2) and (3) and determined as follows.

6.3 The Case Tribunal was satisfied that in this instance, the contents of the e-
mails of 27™ April and 5™ May, 2016 and the “twitter” message of 27" March 2017,
did not consist of “political expression” which attracts enhanced protection under
Article 10 of the ECHR. The contents were no more than gratuitous, abusive and
offensive personal comments, divorced from any political debate. Had they been
made in the context of political debate, the comments were so outrageous and
unfair, the Panel concluded that the interference with the Article 10 rights would still
have been lawful and justified.

7. DECISION OF THE CASE TRIBUNAL ON THE ACTION TO BE TAKEN

7.1 The Case Tribunal considered the facts of the case and the nature of the
breaches. It decided that the imposition of no sanction was not an option, bearing
in mind the aims of the sanctions guidance and in view of the serious nature of the
Code breaches and the severe impact which these had upon an employee of the
Council who, relative to the Respondent, was not in a position of seniority or
power.

7.2 The Case Tribunal had found that these were blatant and deliberate or reckless
breaches of the Code, which did not stop at one e-mail but which continued after
the Respondent became, or should have become aware, that the Officer did not
have responsibility for dealing with the traveller encampment in question. This was
further exacerbated by a “twitter” message posted in March 2017 which showed a
complete lack of insight or remorse as to her behaviour and as to the further impact
it might have on the Officer.

7. 3. The comments about the Officer would impact not only on the rights and
interests of the employee of the Council but also upon the public interest in good
administration, recognising the fact that officers are entitled to conduct their duties
with dignity and without the risk of gratuitous attacks upon their reputation.

7.4. In all the circumstances, the Case Tribunal considered that disqualification
was an entirely justified and proportionate sanction. The Case Tribunal considered
that it was a particularly serious example of bullying and that the disqualification
had to be sufficiently long to enable the Respondent to properly reflect upon her
actions before considering re-entering local politics. The sanction is no more than
is proportionate and necessary in the circumstances.

7.5. In the case of Heesom v the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales [2014]
EWHC 1504 (Admin), the High Court reduced the period of disqualification

Tudalen 27 9.



(CT13)

imposed by the Tribunal from two years and six months to 18 months’
disqualification. That case related to a series of incidents involving a number of
officers in relation to paragraphs 4(b) and 4(c) of the Code of Conduct which took
place over a period of some two years.

The Case Tribunal concluded that although the present case related to one officer
and three incidents over a relatively short period of time, the cases were
comparable in seriousness. In the present case the Panel considered that the
bullying behaviour was particularly blatant and egregious.

7.6. In all the circumstances, the Case Tribunal concluded by unanimous decision
that Former ClIr Halford should be disqualified for 14 months from being or
becoming a member of Flintshire County Council or of any other relevant authority
within the meaning of the Local Government Act 2000.

7.7. The Case Tribunal directs that Flintshire County Council and its Standards
Committee are notified accordingly.

7.8. The Case Tribunal duly notes that the Respondent has the right to seek the
permission of the High Court to appeal the above decision. A person considering
an appeal is advised to take independent legal advice about how to appeal.

Signed: &' "\ |~ : Date: 23 October 2017

i

Claire Jones
Chairperson of the Case Tribunal

Glenda Jones
Panel Member

Juliet Morris
Panel Member

Tudalen 28 10.



(CT12) _
/
PDC / APW

|
/

PANEL DYFARNU CYMRU

ADIUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES

NOTICE OF DECISION

TRIBUNAL REFERENCE NUMBER: APW/001/2017-018/CT

RESPONDENT: (Former) Councillor Alison Halford
RELEVANT AUTHORITY(IES): Flintshire County Council
1. A Case Tribunal convened by the President of the Adjudication Panel for

Wales has considered a reference in respect of the above Respondent.

2. In a letter dated 22 June 2017, the Adjudication Panel for Wales received a
referral from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (“the Ombudsman”) in
relation to allegations made against former Clir Halford. The allegations were that
former ClIr Halford had breached the Flintshire County Council Code of Conduct by
the sending of communication which allegedly failed to show respect and
consideration for others and the using of bullying behaviour or the harassing of any
person.

3. In the absence of any proper and meaningful response by former Clir
Halford, the Case Tribunal determined its adjudication, on the basis of the papers
received, at a meeting on 6 October 2017 at the APW Office, Government
Buildings, Spa Road East, Llandrindod Wells, Powys. The Case Tribunal found by
unanimous decision that former Clir Halford failed to comply with the Flintshire
County Council Code of Conduct as follows:

3.1 Paragraph 4(b) of the Code of Conduct states that you must show respect
and consideration for others.

3.2 The Case Tribunal found that former Clir Halford failed, in emails dated 27
April and 5 May 2016 and a subsequent social media post, to show respect and
consideration for an officer of the Council.

3.3  Paragraph 4(c) of the Code of Conduct states that you must not use bullying
behaviour or harass any person.

3.4  The Case Tribunal found that former Clir Halford, in emails dated 27 April
and 5 May 2016 and a subsequent social media post, used behaviour that
amounted to bullying and harassment of an officer of the Council.

4. The Case Tribunal decided by unanimous decision that former Clir Halford
should be disqualified for 14 months from being or becoming a member of

Tudalen 29



(CT12)
Flintshire County Council or of any other relevant authority within the meaning of
the Local Government Act 2000, with effect from the date of this notice.

B The Flintshire County Council and its Standards Committee are notified
accordingly.

6. The Respondent has the right to seek the leave of the High Court to appeal
the above decision.

Claire Jones
Chairperson of the Case Tribunal

Glenda Jones
Panel Member

Juliet Morris
Panel Member

Tudalen 30



TE uarepny

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL — STANDARDS COMMITTEE — FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

Date of Meeting Topic Notes/Decision/Action
February 2018 e Training
e Dispensations
January 2018 e Training
e Dispensations
e Review of Constitution To set a new programme for the rolling review of the
document
e One Voice Wales (?) OVW may wish to discuss the committee’s work with
town and community councils and the role of their
representative
December 2017 e Training
e Dispensations
e NW Standards Forum Report back from Vice Chair
e Appointment of independent member Results of panel interviews
e Case tribunal decision Report of decision on former Councillor Halford
November 2017 e Training CANCELLED
e Dispensations
e N W County Forum Meeting 24 November, Guildhall, Wrexham
October 2017 e Training

Dispensations
Recruitment

Joint Meeting with Town and Community
Councils

MO to provide update on recruitment of lay person

2 October - Joint meeting with Town and Community
Councils to be attended by the Ombudsman, Mr Nick
Bennett

g ua|beyy A 1aJA6 Je w3z



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



	Rhaglen
	3 Cofnodion
	4 Penodiad Aelod Annibynnol
	5 Fforwm Safonol Gogledd Cymru
	6 Penderfyniad Tribiwnlys Achos
	Appendix 1 - Decision of case tribunal
	Appendix 2 - Notification of case tribunal decision

	8 Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol

